National Register of Historic Places **Registration Form**

RECEIVED 2280 115 2 1999 NAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in How to blete the National Register of Historic Places Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the information requested. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the instructions. Place additional entries and narrative items on continuation sheets (NPS Form 10-900a). Use a typewriter, word processor, or computer to complete all items.

1. Name of Property

historic name Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, Hou	JSe
other names/site number	
2. Location	
street & number <u>1408 Quail</u>	<u>N/A</u> not for publicatior
city or town <u>Santa Clara</u>	N/A vicinity
state_Utah code_UT county_Washingto	on code053 zip code_84765
	enetris de Real Anne acteureur a dia an 14 milio proprietative en service en acteur acteur de Parte a company e

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended. I hereby certify that this X nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property X meets _does not meet the National Register criteria. I recommend that this property be considered significant __nationally __statewide X locally. (__ See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Date

Signature of certifying official/Title

Utah Division of State History, Office of Historic Preservation State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. (_ See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official/Title

Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification I hereby certify that this property is: are of the Keep ate of

entered in the National Register. See continuation sheet.

determined eligible for the National Register.

See continuation sheet. determined not eligible for the National Register.

removed from the National Register.

_ other, (explain:)_

OMB No. 10024-0018

5. Classification					
Ownership of Property (Check as many boxes as apply)	Category of Property (Check only one box)		sources within Proviously listed resources		
<u>x</u> private	<u>x</u> building(s)	Contributing	Non-contributir	ng	
_ public-local	district	2		buildings	
_ public-State	_ site			sites	
public-Federal	structure			structures	
	object			objects	
		2	0	Total	
Name of related multiple part of (Enter "N/A" if property is not part of		Number of cor the National R		es previously listed in	
Historic and Architectural Resources of Santa Clara, Utah		<u>N/A</u>			
6. Function or Use					
Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)		Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)			
	ing	DOMESTIC	: single dwelling		
Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)		Materials (Enter categori	Materials (Enter categories from instructions)		
LATE VICTORIAN		foundation STC	ONE: sandstone		
OTHER: Victorian Eclectic		walls BRICK, V	walls BRICK, WOOD: shingle		
OTHER: Hall Parlor		roof WOOD: shingles			
		other Chimney	BRICK		
		Porch/Co	rnices: WOOD		

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

X See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 7

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 7 Page 1

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

Narrative Description

The Lemuel & Mary Ann Leavitt House, built c.1900, is a one-story, brick, Victorian Eclectic-style building on a sandstone foundation, with a wood shake-covered roof. Although somewhat altered now, the house began as a hall/parlor plan, and then received later additions.¹ Other alterations have also been made to the house which have slightly obscured its original form. The lot is narrow and deep, with several mature deciduous and coniferous trees surrounding the property, and a small orchard and grape arbor behind the house. One outbuilding, a brick granary, is located to the south of the house.

Trying to determine the original style and date of the house is slightly perplexing². The front portion is a basic hall parlor-type house with a centrally placed chimney, and one room (north) slightly larger than the other. The front(west) facade has four bays, with the two inner bays being entryways, and is slightly asymmetrical, mainly because the left window is larger than the right. Both of these windows have brick relieving arches, as do those on the north facade, but whether the larger window was originally the size of the smaller is unknown; the arch for this window appears to be original but the window could have been enlarged when the interior was modified in the c.1970s. The two front windows and the window on the north facade have recent glazing and sash replacements, the remaining windows on the historic portions of the house have wooden, two-over-two, double-hung sashes. The two front doors have recent wooden, Colonial Revival door surrounds, and the south doorway has been walled over on the interior, though the exterior has not been altered. A Bungalow-style porch was added probably c.1910s or later, and features two wooden, battered columns resting on concrete plinths connected by a concrete wall enclosure.

The rear ell is constructed flush with the north facade and has a gable end and centrally-placed chimney. Also connected to this addition is another section which is attached to the south of, and behind, the main part of the building. This section had a flat roof that, according to local tradition, was used for drying fruit in the sun. As was mentioned the house is of the same salmon-colored brick laid in a common-bond pattern throughout, and wall widths vary between twelve and eighteen inches thick. More recently, a small addition was constructed to the south of the rear addition to add closet and bathroom space. This made the exterior wall flush with the south facade. The addition is a wood-frame assembly covered in wood shake siding. The gable roof of the ell was extended to cover this addition, thereby flattening the pitch of the gable, but this is only apparent from the rear of the house.

¹According to tax file information, the entire rear portion of the house is an addition, but the same brick is used on the entire building and there are no seams in the brick that would indicate any additions. Also, there is at least one other house in Santa Clara, the George & Bertha Graff House (listed on the National Register of Historic Places, 1998), that is fairly similar in plan and construction to this one.

²The tax file provides a construction date of 1911, but the house appears to have been built earlier than this. A surviving daughter of Lorenzo Leavitt, Fay Leavitt Gates, says that she was born in the house in April 1903.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 7 Page 2

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

The interior received a major renovation in the c.1970s. This included cutting out portions of the doorways, completely paneling the southwest room in a Colonial Revival style, and placing a corner fireplace in each of two original rooms. The kitchen was also remodeled at this time with new cabinets and flooring.

Slightly to the south of the house is located a granary (12' x 14') constructed of soft-fired brick which is heavily weathered and starting to "melt" giving it the appearance of adobe. The building is on a raised, basalt rubble foundation and has a rolled-asphalt roofing, gable roof. Connected to the roof on the west side is a shed roof supported on three juniper posts. There are no other outbuildings.

The property is surrounded by several trees, both deciduous and coniferous, with some fruit trees and a grape arbor in the rear yard. The yard around the house is enclosed with a chain-link fence. Little appears to have been changed on the property except for the addition of a gravel drive in front of the granary, and some landscaping in front of the house.

Although the house has undergone renovation and alteration, the form and original massing remain with some nonhistoric applications which only slightly alter the original feeling. The house, grounds, and outbuilding appear to be eligible for nomination.

Applic Mark	atement of Significance cable National Register Criteria "x" on one or more lines for the criteria ring the property for National Register listing.)	Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
<u>x</u> A	Property is associated with events that have	SOCIAL HISTORY
	made a significant contribution to the broad	
	patterns of our history.	
_в	Property is associated with the lives of persons	
	significant in our past.	
_ C	Property embodies the distinctive characteristics	
	of a type, period, or method of construction, or	Period of Significance
	represents the work of a master, or possesses	c.1900-1940s
	high artistic values, or represents a	
	significant and distinguishable entity whose	
	components lack individual distinction.	Significant Dates
_ D	Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,	c.1900
	information important in prehistory or history.	
	ia Considerations "x" on all that apply.)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Prope	rty is:	Significant Person (Complete if Criterion B is marked above)
_ A	owned by a religious institution or used for	N/A
	religious purposes.	Cultural Affiliation
_В	removed from its original location.	N/A
_ C	a birthplace or grave.	
_ D	a cemetery.	
_ E	a reconstructed building, object, or	Architect/Builder
	structure.	Unknown
F	a commemorative property.	
G	less than 50 years of age or achieved	
	significance within the past 50 years.	
	ative Statement of Significance in the significance of the property on one or more conti	nuation sheets.)
		\underline{X} See continuation sheet(s) for Section N
	ijor Bibliographical References	

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in prepa	aring this form on one or more continuation sheets.)
Previous documentation on file (NPS):	Primary location of additional data:
preliminary determination of individual listing	x State Historic Preservation Office
(36 CFR 67) has been requested	Other State agency
_ previously listed in the National Register	Federal agency
previously determined eligible by the National	Local government
Register	University
designated a National Historic Landmark	_ Other
recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey	—
#	Name of repository:

__ recorded by Historic American Engineering Record # _____

epository:

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 8 Page 3

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

Narrative Statement of Significance

The Lemuel and Mary Ann Leavitt House, built c.1900s, is significant for its association with the "Cotton Mission and Settlement: 1861-1900," and the "Early Twentieth-Century Development: 1900-1940s" category of the "Historic and Architectural Resources of Santa Clara, Utah," Multiple Property Nomination. The Leavitt House is an example of a fairly typical dwelling for the period in the area. The expansion of the building traces the increased need for space as Lemuel Leavitt, a farmer, had an increasing number of children, possibly up to sixteen who could have lived in this house. Leavitt was called by Brigham Young, President of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints (LDS) at the time, to colonize several areas during the early settlement period of Utah. Even though Leavitt was a successful colonizer, the difficult circumstances in Santa Clara allowed for his large family only a modest house in which to live. Although portions of the house have received nonhistoric modifications, the overall form and feeling of the house remains which retains the original historic integrity and association with the history of Santa Clara.

The "Cotton Mission and Settlement" period was one of expectation for the continued viability of Santa Clara and surrounding communities. After visiting the region in 1861, the Church of Jesus Christ of Latterday Saints'(LDS) President Brigham Young called several hundred families to settle in the area to assist with the production of cotton which was found to grow well in the warm region. A large percentage of these families were Swiss converts to the LDS church who had recently emigrated to the state and had a knowledge of raising grapes, another plant found to grow well in the area, for the production of wine for the sacrament and for sale. The Swiss immigrants settled in the area which would become the presentday community of Santa Clara. Just weeks after the their arrival a long period of rain struck the region causing extensive flooding which destroyed the fort and original settlement. The earlier English speaking settlers then moved into the area occupied by Swiss immigrants which incited minor cultural clashes that took years to resolve. Cotton production, which was the impetus for settling the region, declined for various reasons in the following decades until it was almost nonexistent by the turn of the century. But the warm climate was found to be ideal for raising fruit, and fruit production became the main occupation of the residents of Santa Clara. In fact the raising and selling of fruit would remain Santa Clara's chief resource for more than the next half century.

The "Early Twentieth-Century Development" period saw little change from the previous period in Santa Clara. Fruit production was the chief occupation and source of income for the residents. The population grew but at a very slow pace. Because of its remoteness and climate, few people were attracted to Santa Clara as a place to live. But families expanded enough to require a larger replacement for the meeting house and the construction of a new school in the early part of the century. The fruit industry expanded greatly as means of transporting the produce improved. Trucks were purchased by some shippers to sell the fruit in out of state markets. Although the railroad never made it to the region, a major highway, the "Arrowhead Trail" was constructed right through Santa Clara in the 1920s. This brought many travelers to the area who bought fruit in the city at roadside stands. With the highway also came increased tourism which brought more business to the area, although mainly to St. George, the largest settlement in the

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 8 Page 4

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

region. Santa Clara thrived on the fruit industry until the Interstate-15 project bypassed the area in the 1970s.

Lemuel Leavitt purchased the property, of which this was a parcel, on August 21, 1883, through a Probate Judge Deed from J. M. Macfarlane, Probate Judge of the county. Leavitt had been called to the Indian Mission in Santa Clara in the late 1850s to teach the Indians how to raise crops in the arid climate. Lemuel Leavitt was born on November 3, 1827, in Compton, Quebeck, Canada to Jeremiah and Sarah Studevant Leavitt. His family moved to Nauvoo, Illinois, to join the Mormon settlers there, but because of persecution, they moved to Mount Pisgah, Iowa. Jeremiah returned to Illinois for provisions and while there contracted an illness and died, leaving Lemuel to assist his mother in providing for five siblings. After moving to Bluff, and then Trade Point, Iowa, Lemuel left his family to continue to Salt Lake City where he built a small cabin to house his family which arrived in October 1849.

Lemuel then married Laura Melvina Thompson in Salt lake City on May 24, 1851.³ Laura was born December 18, 1833 in Lavinia, New York, a daughter of Ezra and Amanda Butler Powell Thompson. Shortly after their marriage, Lemuel and Laura moved to the Tooele Valley, southwest of Salt Lake, along with several others, to settle the area. Then in 1856 he was called to help settle the Cache Valley, ninety miles north of Salt Lake City. After only a short time, Lemuel was again called by Brigham Young to help in the Indian Mission in the extreme southwest corner of present-day Utah, 400 miles from the Cache Valley. He was asked to help teach the indigenous tribes how to raise crops and cultivate the soil. After approximately six years in Santa Clara, Laura died, and shortly afterward one of Lemuel's young daughters died leaving him with seven children to raise.

Within a year after these events, Lemuel was called to Nebraska to accompany emigrants to Utah. One of the emigrants was a Danish girl, Betsy Amelia Speckler, daughter of Edward and Emily Mortensen Speckler of Copenhagen, Denmark. Lemuel asked her to marry him, and they were married October 13, 1863. They were only married for four years, and had one child, when Betsy died, on August 4, 1867. Sometime after this, (no date is provided) Lemuel met Mary Craig, a widow, and mother of five children. Even though they had many children between them, they felt that their union would make it easier to raise their families, and so they married (no date provided). They were not together long when Mary Craig died (no date provided). Sometime later he married another widow, Mary Ann Morgan, on November 17, 1873. Mary was the daughter of Thomas and Esther Holder Morgan of Whitecroft in Newland, Gloucester, England. She later had two children with Lemuel.

Four years later, in 1877, another call came to help colonize a settlement just over the border in Bunkerville, Nevada. Just prior to this he married another widow, Rebecca Gibbons Waite, who had six children. He moved this family to Bunkerville, and made several trips between the two families until

³The "Brief History of Lemuel S. Leavitt" states that his family arrived in 1859, and at about this time he married, but their marriage date in the LDS church Ancestral File is listed as 1851, so the 1859 date is probably a misprint.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 8 Page 5

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

Rebecca died in 1889. After her death Lemuel moved her children who were still living at home to Santa Clara to be with Mary Ann and her family. It is during this period that the house was possibly constructed to house all of the children. No information is provided on Lemuel after this date. He probably remained in Santa Clara with his family until his death on October 14, 1916. Mary Ann passed away on January 12, 1922 in Santa Clara, and the house remained with her son, Lorenzo Calvin Leavitt, who did not take official title for another seven years, on November 11, 1929.

Lorenzo Leavitt was born on November 16, 1874, in Santa Clara, and married Susetta Hafen on March 31, 1896 in the St. George LDS Temple. Lorenzo, like many of the first settlers of Santa Clara, was a cattle rancher and a farmer. Unfortunately, no other information is given of him. Susetta Hafen was born on March 19, 1877, in Santa Clara to John G. and Susetta Boshard Hafen. No other information is provided for her either. Lorenzo died on February 24, 1957, and Susetta followed him in death on December 27, 1970, in Salt Lake City, Utah. They had 10 children, one of which, Fay L. Gates, became owner of the house in 1972. The house remains with the family to this date.

The Leavitt house is a good example of the transitional character of the architecture at the turn of the century. The salmon-colored brick, found on many of the homes in the region, became available to the area in the late 1870s or early 1880s, and allowed for greater variation in use for Victorian-style architecture. Although Classical in form, the Victorian influence in the architectural details is readily apparent. Because many of the settlers in Santa Clara struggled to make an income for many years, the architecture of their homes remained in the simple, unembellished Classical style even after Victorian styles became common in other parts of the state. Those who saw success in their farms began to build or alter their present homes in the Victorian styles, mainly the Victorian Eclectic which enlisted such details as asymmetrical facades, bay windows, arched window and door openings, wooden shingles on the vertical surfaces, decorative brickwork, and leaded-glass windows. The Leavitt house combines a Classical, hall parlor house type with many of the Victorian Eclectic features common from 1885-1910.⁴ Although some alterations have been made to the house, the changes are reversible, and the overall form and massing of the building remains. In spite of the alterations, the Leavitt house still chronicles the developing history of Santa Clara.

⁴ Thomas Carter & Peter Goss, <u>Utah's Historic Architecture, 1847-1940: A Guide</u>, (Salt Lake City: University of Utah Graduate School of Architecture and Utah State Historical Society, 1991), 127.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. 9 Page 6

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

Bibliography

<u>A Brief History of Lemuel S. Leavitt</u>. Unpublished family history, no date provided.

- Carter, Thomas. <u>Building Zion: Folk Architecture in the Mormon Settlements of Utah's Sanpete</u> <u>Valley, 1849-1890</u>. Unpublished Ph. D. dissertation, Indiana University, 1984.
- Carter, Thomas and Peter Goss. <u>Utah's Historic Architecture, 1847-1940</u>. Salt Lake City, UT: University of Utah Graduate School of Architecture and Utah State Historical Society, 1991.
- Esshom, Frank, comp. <u>Pioneers and Prominent Men of Utah</u>. Salt Lake City: Utah Pioneers Book Publishing Co., 1913.

The Salt Lake Tribune. Issues include: February 25, 1957, p.25; December 28, 1957, p.B-13.

Tooele County Daughters of the Utah Pioneers, comp. <u>History of Tooele County</u>. Salt Lake City, UT: Tooele County D.U.P., 1961.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property .44 acres

UTM References

(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

A <u>1/2</u> <u>2/6/4/1/4/0</u> <u>4/1/1/2/7/0/0</u> B <u>/</u> <u>/////</u> Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

C<u>/ ///// /////</u> D<u>/ ///// //////</u>

Verhal Boundary Description

(Describe the boundaries of the property.)

N ½ LOT 3 BLK 16 SANTA CLARA TOWN & FIELD SURVEY

Property Tax No. SC-131-A-RD

__ See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 10

Boundary Justification

(Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

The boundaries are those which were historically, and continue to be, associated with the building.

_ See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 10

11. Form Prepared By

name/title _J. Cory Jensen, Preservation Consultatn/Utah SHPO staff	
organization Santa Clara CLG	date December 4, 1998
street & number 671 South 560 East	telephone (801)224-0955
city or town Orem	state <u>UT</u> zip code <u>84097</u>

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:

- Continuation Sheets
- Maps: A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
 - A Sketch map for historic districts and/or properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
- Photographs: Representative black and white photographs of the property.
- Additional items (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)

Property Owner

name Brian/Kelly Gates				
street & number	1408 Quail, P.O. Box 456	telephone (435) 656-0967		
city or town	Santa Clara	state <u>UT</u> zip code <u>84765</u>		

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 *et seq.*).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section No. <u>PHOTOS</u> Page <u>7</u>

Leavitt, Lemuel & Mary Ann, House, Santa Clara, Washington County, UT

Photo No. 1

- 1. Lemuel & Mary Ann Leavitt House
- 2. Santa Clara, Washington County, Utah
- 3. Photographer: Cory Jensen
- 4. Date: March 1998
- 5. Negative on file at Utah SHPO.
- 6. North & west elevations of building. Camera facing southeast.

Photo No. 2

- 1. Lemuel & Mary Ann Leavitt House
- 2. Santa Clara, Washington County, Utah
- 3. Photographer: Cory Jensen
- 4. Date: March 1998
- 5. Negative on file at Utah SHPO.
- 6. East elevation of building. Camera facing northwest.

Photo No. 3

- 1. Lemuel & Mary Ann Leavitt House
- 2. Santa Clara, Washington County, Utah
- 3. Photographer: Cory Jensen
- 4. Date: March 1998
- 5. Negative on file at Utah SHPO.
- 6. South & east elevations of building. Camera facing northwest.

Photo No. 4

- 1. Lemuel & Mary Ann Leavitt Granary
- 2. Santa Clara, Washington County, Utah
- 3. Photographer: Cory Jensen
- 4. Date: March 1998
- 5. Negative on file at Utah SHPO.
- 6. South& west elevations of building. Camera facing northeast

LEMIKELLENNITHOLF SAMRUPLENUT ELENDERLAH (MSTO) APRIL 1993 JEANNEY OORTHINGU



